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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF WINDLAS BIOTECH LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Windlas Biotech Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) and its joint venture, comprising of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a
summary of material accounting and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Consolidated Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements of the subsidiary and based
on unaudited financial statements certified by the management as referred in ‘other matters paragraph’, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of their Consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its joint
venture as at March 31, 2025, of Consolidated profit (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Consolidated changes in equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its joint venture in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit
evidence obtained by other auditor in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters section below
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report
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Sr.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Revenue Recognition:

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the
Group and its joint venture has recognized
revenue from contracts with customers
amounting to Rs. 7,551.26 million.

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of the goods are
transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods.

Revenue is measured based on the
transaction  price, which is  the
consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, rebates, scheme allowances,
price concessions, incentives, and returns,
if any, as specified in the contracts with the
customers.

The risk is, therefore, that revenue may not
be recognized in the correct period or that
revenue and associated profit is misstated.

Refer to Accounting Policies Note 2.09
and Note No. 26 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our audit procedures included the following:

e Understanding the policies and
procedures  applied to  revenue
recognition, as well as compliance
thereof, including an analysis of the
effectiveness of controls related to
revenue recognition processes employed
by the Group and its Joint Venture.

e On sample basis, examining supporting
documents for the sales transaction
occurring during the year and near the
end of the accounting period including
the credit notes issued after period end to
verify the occurrence and accuracy of
revenue, whether revenue recording was
consistent with the conditions, and
whether it was in compliance with the
Group and its Joint Venture’s Policy.

e Performed analytical procedure to
identify the unusual trends and also
tested journal entries recognized in
revenue focusing on unusual or irregular
transactions.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprise the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the

Consolidated Financial Statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will

not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit report of other auditor, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the Consolidated Financial Position, Consolidated Financial Performance, (including other comprehensive
income), and Consolidated Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity of the Group
and its joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued
thereunder. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its joint venture
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and its joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group and its joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and its
Jjoint venture to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group and
its joint venture or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its joint venture are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and its joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and its joint venture’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its joint venture to express an opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the Financial Statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
of which we are the independent auditors For the other entity included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary company incorporated outside India, whose
financial statements reflected total assets of Rs. 0.03 million as at March 31, 2025, total revenue
(including other income) of Rs. Nil, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit/(loss) and other
comprehensive income) of Rs. 3.05 millions & net cash inflows of Rs. (0.45) million for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements have
been audited by the other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of other auditor.

The Consolidated Financial Statements includes Company’s share of net profit after tax of Rs. Nil and
total comprehensive income of Rs. Nil millions for the period from April 1, 2024 to July 12, 2024, in
respect of one joint venture. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by
the Board of Directors and our opinion on the financial statements, to the extent they have been derived
from such financial statements is based solely on such unaudited financial statements furnished by the
Board of Directors.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial results of
the joint venture are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
Financial Statements certified by the Board of directors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

b)

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to
us, CARO is not applicable on the financial statements of the companies included in Consolidated
Financial Statements. Therefore, this clause is not applicable to the company.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the report of other
auditors on financial statement and other financial information of subsidiary company & joint venture
as referred to in Other Matters paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial

Statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the report of the other auditor.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of
the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group and its subsidiary
company, is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at March
31, 2025 on its financial position of the Group and its joint venture — Refer Note 48 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

il The Group and its joint venture has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any on long-term contracts. The Group
and its joint venture did not have long term derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

iv. (a) The Management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of it’s
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management of the Holding Company has represented, that, to the best of it’s
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances and based on audit reports of other auditors, nothing has come to our
notice that caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the final dividend proposed in the
previous year, declared and paid by the Group during the year is in accordance with Section
123 of the Act, as applicable. The Group has not declared or paid any interim dividend during
the year. The Board of Directors of the Group and its Joint Venture have proposed final
dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the
Act, as applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on April 1, 2024, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of account which has feature of recording audit trail (edit log) and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. The company’s
accounting ERP is a Saas-based software and the audit trail at the database level is managed
by a third party service provider hence the audit trail log at database level was not made
available to us. The provisions of audit trail are not applicable to subsidiary and joint venture
which are companies incorporated outside India.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with respect to the accounting software, wherein this feature has been enabled
and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO.LLP

Chartered A

Firm Reg. No.: 000756N//N5004i! .

}L\@"/

Vijay Kumar

Partner

ccountants

Membership No.:092671
UDIN: 25092671BMOFBX 1447

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 22, 2025
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Windlas Biotech Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Windlas Biotech Limited as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements of Windlas Biotech Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company™) as of that date.

The audit of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is
applicable only to the Holding Company.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls reference
to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls reference to Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls reference to Consolidated Financial Statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includés those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls reference to Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Vijay Kumar

Partner

Membership No.:092671
UDIN: 25092671BMOFBX1447

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 22, 2025




'Windlas Biotech Limited

(CIN: L74899UR2001 PLC033407

Consoliduted Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupets in millions, unless otherwise stated)

R As at As at

LaTaeniar INotes March 31,2025 March 31,2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Praperty. Plant and Equipment 3 1,954.94 1,694.85
Capital work in Progress 4 32,01 57.08
Right of Use 5 232.32 5095
Other Intangible Assets 6 (a) 46.61 44 68
Intangible Assets Under Development 6 (b) 21.18 -
Financial Assets:

(i) Other Financial Assets 10 (a) 42.58 43.23
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 2.83 572
Other Non-Current Assets 11 (a) 20.74 52.69

2,353.21 1,949.20
Current Assets
Inventories 12 813.84 621.89
Financinl Assets:

(i) Investments 9 2,233.69 1,734.35

(ii) Trade Receivables 3 1,668.63 1,362.97

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 424 52,88

(iv) Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 15 155.03 256.57

(v) Other Financial Assets 10 (b) 10.00 1535
Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 32.80 6.88
Other Current Assets 11 (b} 333.06 262,17

5.251.29 4.312.86
Total assets 7.604.50 6,262.06
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(i) Equity Share Capital 16 104 80 103 99
(ii) Other Equity 17 4.952.92 4,395.37
5,057.72 4,499.36
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:

(i) Borrowings 18 - -

(ii) Lease liability 19 (a) 2251 2018

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 20 (a) 1.00 1.80
Provisions 21 28 84 23.21

52.35 45.19
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
(i) Borrowings 23 27117 1.09
(ii) Trade Payables 24
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 120,27 15311
(b) total outstanding dues for creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,552,10 1,162.00

(iii) Lease liability 19 (b) 3229 1514

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20 (b) 37534 332.19
Other Current Liabilities 25 127 68 46.73
Provisions 22 15,58 725

2.494.43 1.717.51
Total equity and liabilities 7.604.50 6262 06

Summary of material accounting policies
Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fifyn Registration Number - 000756N/N50044 |

o

Vijay Kumar
Partner
Membership No. - 092671
Place: New Delhi
Diate: May 22, 2025
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‘Whole Time Director
DIN: 0001 1451

Place: Dehiradun

ot hanll,

Hitesh Windliss
Managing Director
DIN: 02030941
Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 22, 2023

For and on behalf of the hoard of directors of Windlas Biotech Limited

wth QWM 4[‘

DIN: 00221671
Place: Dehradun
Date: May 22, 2025

Ananta Narayar Panda
Company Secretary
Place Gurgaon

Dige. Moy 22,2023

Kanaging Director
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
Particul N For the year ended For the year ended
artieufars °feS | March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Income
Revenue from Operations 26 7,598.78 6,309.56
Other Income 27 180.18 134 68
Tatal Income 7.778.96 6,444.24
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 28 4933.78 3,865.87
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and Work-in-progress 29 (215.23) 95.88
Employee Benefit Expenses 30 1,229.16 874.57
Finanee Cost 31 43,82 11.05
Depreciation and Amortization expense 32 279.85 134 44
Other Expenses 33 710.00 691.52
Total Expenses 6,981.38 5,673.33
Prafit before share of gain/(loss) in joint venture 797.58 770.91
Share of gain/(loss) in joint venture % =
Profit before tax 797.58 770.91
Income tax expense
Current tax 7 182.92 173.69
Deferred Tax 7 4.72 1535
Tatal Tax Expense 187.64 189.04
Profit for the year 609.94 581.87
Profit attributable to Owners' 609.94 581.87
Profit attributable to Non Controlling Interest - =
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans- gain/(loss) (7.26) (3.25)
Income tax effect 183 0.82
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation reserve (0.06) (0.05)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (5.49) (2.48)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 604.45 579.39
Other Comprehensive Income attributable to Owner's (5.49) (2.48)
Other Comprehensive Income attributable to Non Controlling Interest - -
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to Owner's 604.45 579.39
Tatal Comprehensive I attributable to Non Controlling Interest - -
Earnings per share:

Basic (in Rs.) 36 29.19 27.97
Diluted (in Rs.) 36 2887 27.88
Face value per share {in Rs. | 5 5
Summary of material accounting policies
Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
Ag per our report of even date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of Windlas Biotech Li
Chartered Accountants
Fitmn Registration Nysrfer - 000756N/N50044 |
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Date May 22,2025 Date: May 22, Date: May 22, 2025 Date: May 22, 2025
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Windlas Biotech Limited
(CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rujiees in millions, unless otherwise stated )

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of face value Rs. 5 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023 104.63
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period

EITOrS )
|Restated balance as on April 1, 2023 104.63
[Impact of Buy Back of Shares (0.64)
As at March 31, 2024 103.99
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period

erTors B
Restated balance as on April 1, 2024 103.99
Shares issued on Exercise of employee stock aptions 0.81
As at March 31, 2025 104.80

B. Other equity

Equity attributable to owners' of the Company Non-
Reserves and surplus Foreign . o
Particulars Capital Currency Total controlling| Total equity
General | Retained | ESOP . 5 interest (A+B)
Reserve || carifigs || Reserve Redemption | Transtation (A) (B)
Reserve Reserve
As at March 31, 2023 136.25 1,763.46 28.21 4.34 (0.36) 3.918.08 - 3.918.08
Changes in accouting policy or prior period errors = - = = - = - =
Restated balance as on April 1, 2023 136.25 1,763.46 28.21 4.34 (0.36) 3.918.08 - 3.918.08
ESOP reserve created during the year - - 20.67 - - 2067 - 20.67
Buy Back of Shares - - - - - (31.44) - (31.44)
Buy Back Tax - - - - - (7.32) - (7.32)
Buy Back Expenses - - - - - (0.83) - (0.83)
Share issue expenses - - - - - - - -
Dividend paid - {83.19) - - - (83.19) - (83.19)
[Profit for the year < 581.87 2 0.64 (0.05) 581.82 < 581.82
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - (2.43) - = - (2.43) - (2.43)
As at March 31, 2024 136.25 2,259.72 48.88 4.98 (0.41) 4.395.37 - 4,395.37
|Changes in accouting policy or prior period errors - - - - - - - -
Restated balance as on April 1, 2024 136.25 2,259.72 48.88 4.98 (041}  4,395.37 - 4.395.37
ESOP reserve created during the year - - 24,60 - - 24.60 - 24 60
Shares issued on Exercise of employee stock options 21.00 - (21.00) - - 43.45 - 43 45
Share issue expenses - - - - - - - -
Dividend paid - (114.95) - - - (114.95) - (114.95)
Profit for the year - 609 94 ~ - (0.06) 609.88 - 609.88
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - (5.43) - - = (5.43) - (5.43)
As at March 31, 2025 157.25 2,749.28 52.48 4.98 (0.47) 4,952.92 - 4,952.92

Summary of material accounting policies

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Charterad Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 000756N/N500441

\Y

Vijuy Kumar

Partner

Membership No, - 092671
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 22, 2025

Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Windlas Biotech Limite
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'Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Add:

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & amortization expense

Provision for doubtful balance

Balance written back

ESOP Expense

Foreign currency translation reserve

Allowance for Doubtful Debts

(Gain) / Loss on Investments measured at FVTPL (net)
Net (gain)/ loss on sale of Property Plant & Equipment
Interest expense on borrowings

Interest expense on lease liability

Interest income

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets
Decrease/(increase) in other non current assets
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes refunded/ (paid)

Net cash flow from operations (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
including capital advances and capital creditors

Proceeds from/ (investment in) Mutual Funds (net)

Interest received

Proceeds from redemption of / (Investment in) fixed deposits (net)
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings
Share Issue Expense

Buyback of equity shares

Dividend Paid

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings

Repayment of Lease liabilities (principal portion)
Interest paid (including interest on lease liabilities)

Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the year

Sale of property, plant & equipment, Intangible assets and capital work in progress

Purchase of property, plant & equipment, Intangible assets and capital work in progress

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
797.58 770.91
279.85 134,44
- 25.40
1.17 -
24.60 20.67
(0.06) (0.05)
1.00 2.09
(150.79) (108.21)
(0.09) (0.06)
38.99 7.08
4.83 397
(15.45) (19.69)
981.63 836.55
6.70 498
357.26 437.68
40.52 46.81
80.95 5.27
(308.03) (198.35)
(191.95) 125.49
(5.43) (3.64)
(0.05) (1.56)
(70.89) 22.85
890.71 1,276.08
(208.84) (186.48)
681.87 1,089.60
(521.94) (376.84)
1.97 0.42
(348.55) (561.00)
16.27 17.41
111.61 (0.67)
(740.64) (920.68)1
270.08 (2.26)
44.26 -
- (40.23)
(114.95) (83.01)
- (1.09)
(145.44) (15.24)
(43.82) (11.07)
10.13 (152.90)
(48.64) 16.02
52.88 36.86
4.24 52.88

S



Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

h(AII amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

a) Cash and Cash Equivalents included in_Statement of Cash Flow comprise of following (Refer Note 14):

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with Banks 4.08 52.46
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 0.20
Cash on Hand 0.16 0.22
Total 4.24 52.88
b) Reeonciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars As at Net Cash Non cash changes As at
March 31, 2023 Flows Fair value changes March 31, 2024
Long term borrowings 1.09 (1.09) = =
Short term borrowings* 335 (2.26) - 1.09
Interest accrued - (11.07) 11.07 -
Lease liabilities 4549 (15.24) 5.07 3532
Dividend - (83.01) - 0.18
Equity Share Capital - (40.23) 40.23 -
Total Liabilities 49.93 (152.89) 56.36 36.59
Particulars As at Net Cash Non cash changes As at
Mareh 31, 2024 Flows Fair value changes March 31. 2025
Long term borrowings - - - -
Short term borrowings* 1.09 270.08 - 271.17
Interest accrued . (43.82) 43.82 -
Lease liabilities 35.32 (145.44) 164.92 54.80
Dividend 0.18 (114.95) 114.99 0.22
Equity Share Capital - 44.26 (44.26) =
Total Liabilities 36.59 10.13 279.47 326.19

* including current maturities of Long term borrowings

within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Summary of material accounting policies
Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 000756N/N50044 1

Yijay Kumar
Partner
Membership No. - 092671
Place: New Delhi
Date; May 22, 2025

DIN: 00011451
Place: Dehradun

\.

Chiel's
Place:

Lt Iy Q‘l«“
AshoKamar Windlass

Whole Time Director

Date: May 22. 2025

Date: May 22, 2025

A

"

Note: For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with
financial institutions, other short - term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Windlas Biotech Limited

Hitesh Windlass
Managing Diregtor
DIN: 02030941
Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 22, 2025

“Jamt Managing Director

DIN: 00221671
Place: Dehradun
Date: May 22, 2025

G}L'V“/L’

Ananta Narayan Panda
Company Secretary
Place: Gurgaon

Date: May 22, 2025




Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

1

2.01

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Windlas Biotech Limited (‘the Company’ or 'Parent) is a limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated on February 19, 2001 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its
registered office at 40/1, Mohabewala Industrial Area, Dehradun, Uttarakhand. These
Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Company and its subsidiary (together referred as
the 'Group') and its associate and its joint venture. The Group is engaged in manufacturing and
trading of pharmaceutical products. The Group manufacturing facilities are located at Dehradun in
Uttarakhand.

The Group Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31,
2024 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors, in accordance with resolution passed on
May 22, 2025.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statement

i) Compliance with IndAS

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group comprise of the Consolidated Financial
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2025, Consolidated Financial Statement of
Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for
years ended March 31, 2024, and the Material Accounting Policies and explanatory notes
(collectively, the ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ or ‘Statements”).

iii) Historical cost convention

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following assets and liabilities:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

ii) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair vatue

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all values are
rounded to nearest millions (INR '000,000) upto two decimal places, except when otherwise
indicated.

iv) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated balance sheet based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for purpeseofitrading
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.02

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries:

The consolidated summary financial information incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
holding company has control. The Company controls an investee when the Company has power
over the investee, is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities
of the investee. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.
The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiaries line by
line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intra-Group
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting
policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities respectively.

In the consolidated financial information, ‘Goodwill’ represents the excess of the cost to the
Holding company of its investment in the subsidiaries over its share of equity, at the respective
dates on which the investments are made. Alternatively, where the share of equity as on the date of
investment is in excess of cost of investment, it is recognised as ‘Bargain Purchase’ in the

consolidated financial statements.
%\‘\ —
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Associates & Joint Venture:

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decision of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s investment in its associate are accounted for using the equity method, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for
in accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate since the
acquisition date. Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that

associate, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwill relating to the Associates & Joint Venture is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for impairment individually. The consolidated statement of profit and
loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the Associates & Joint Venture. Any
change in other comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the
equity of the Associates & Joint Venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associated are eliminated to the extent of the interest in

the associate.
The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to

be an associate, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification

adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
&
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.03

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities. The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit and loss of
an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of profit and loss outside operating
profit and represents profit and loss after tax of the associate. The financial statements of the
associate are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group. After application of the
equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on
its investment in its Associates & Joint Venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such
evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the Associates & Joint Venture and its carrying value, and recognises the
loss as ‘Share of profit of an Associate & Joint Venture’ in the consolidated summary statement of
profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of
purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related
to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of
input tax credit availed wherever applicable. Subsequent costs are included in asset's carrying
amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of item can be
measured reliably. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected
cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset
if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income

statement when the asset is derecognised.
Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation /

under development as at the balance sheet date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on prorata basis on written-down value
method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management and in the manner prescribed
in Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013. The useful life is as follows:

, ':':;,"i';’lh,k\; : 0070
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Assets Useful life
(in years)
Building . 30
Plant and machinery 15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office equipment 5
Computers and servers 3-6
Exceptions to above
Plant & machinery (Continuous Process plant)* 15
(Including second hand Purchase) *
Lab Equipment * 15

*Based on Internal assessment the management believes that the useful life given above best
represent the period over which management expects to use these assets

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all the items
of property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1 April 2019, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

2.04 Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

2.05 Research and development cost
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual
project is recognized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate all the following:
i) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
ii) Its intention to complete the asset;
iii) Its ability to use or sell the asset;
iv) How the asset will generate future economic benefits;
v) The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset;

and
vi) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during

development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is
applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete
and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on straight line basis over the estimated useful

life. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually. /
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful economic life of 5 years, which represents the period over which the Group expects to
derive economic benefits from the use of the assets.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all the items
of intangible assets recognized as at 1 April 2019, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible assets.

2.06 Financial instruments

U

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss)

- Those measured at amortized cost
The classification depends on entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flow.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

- Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

- Debt instruments at amortized cost

- Equity instruments AOINEHTN ,/17 %‘/ 8\" ,
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the
statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss),or recognized in other
comprehensive income( i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income). For investment in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investment in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FVTOCL

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A Debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual
cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair
value changes).

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the

Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial

instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. The EIR amortization is included in

other income in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or
loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI

A Debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if following

criteria are met:

a) Business Model Test : The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and for selling financial assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each

reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive

income (OCI), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss. On
derecognition of asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to statement of profit & loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is

reported as interest income using the EIR method. C\,\ }/
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Windlas Biotech Limited

CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
Debt instruments at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.A gain or loss on a Debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not a part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in statement of profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss
within other gains or losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these Debt
instruments is included in other income.

Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IND AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income all subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group's statement of financial

position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
"pass through" arrangement and either;

(a) the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or
(b) the Group has retained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset,
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the ownership of the financial assets, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Group has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group tetains control of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial

asset.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk

exposure é\r( M‘f }
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI);
The Group follows "simplified approach" for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather , it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward
looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on 12- months ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:
(i) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

(ii) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortized cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision

in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. (\,\ MF )
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
(c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains
at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was
measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the "accumulated
impairment amount".

(ii) Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. the
Group financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payables,
trade deposits, retention money, liabilities towards services, sales incentive and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationship as defined
by Ind AS 109. The separated embedded derivate are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit
and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Group
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using Effective interest rate method.
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the Effective interest rate amortization process. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the Effective interest rate. The Effective interest rate amortization is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets/ financial liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments
and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business
model are expected to be infrequent.

The Group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external
or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it
applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

2.07 Inventories
a) Basis of valuation:
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of
obsolescence, if any. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net

realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 4\\ (\} OKA_F
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Windlas Biotech Limited

CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

b) Method of Valuation:

i) Cost of raw materials and components has been determined by using FIFO method and
comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from
tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

ii) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes raw material, packing material, direct
labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads and excise duty as
applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of
production facilities.

iii) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.08 Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or
liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax:

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

The Group’s management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net
basis.

Deferred tax:

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time
of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.09

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.
i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group collects Goods and Service Tax
on behalf of government, and therefore, these are not consideration to which the Group is entitled,
hence, these are excluded from revenue. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring
them to the customer. Revenue includes adjustments made towards liquidated damages and
variation wherever applicable as per contract.
a) Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally ex-factory.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

b) Revenue from sale of services
Revenue from sale of services is recognised over a period of time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group and accounted
revenue as and when services are rendered on cost plus basis where cost is determined on
principles mutually agreed with customers.

c) Consideration of significant financing component in a contract
The Group receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in
Ind AS 115, the Group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between
the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for
that good or service will be one year or less.

d) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally due for settlement within one year and
therefore are all classified as current. Where the settlement is due after one year, they are
classified as non-current. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost

using the effective interest method. /L\ i\x M
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated finauncial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

e)

g)

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
entity has transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable when the entity’s
right to consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due. The impairment of contract assets is
measured, presented and disclosed on the same basis as trade receivables.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If
a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Impairment

An impairment is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of receivable or asset
relating to contracts with customers (a) the remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services to which such asset relates; less (b)
the costs that relate directly to providing those goods or services and that have not been
recognised as expenses.

2.10 Employee benefits
(i) Long-term employee benefit obligations

a)

losses are determined." i\}'

Compensated Absences

"Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within
one year from the balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of
estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by
the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions
are credited or charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or
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Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Post-employment obligations
a) Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The
liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together
with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined
benefit obligation is determined by actuarial valuation as on the balance sheet date, using the
projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
(i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
(ii) The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and nonroutine settlements; and
(i) Net interest expense or income

b) Provident fund
The Group makes contributions to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, which is a defined contribution plan.
The Group’s contributions paid/payable under the scheme is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

c) Employee State Insurance
The Group makes prescribed monthly contributions towards Employees’ State Insurance
Scheme.

d) Superannuation Scheme
The Group contributes towards a fund established to provide superannuation benefit to certain
employees in terms of Group Superannuation Policy entered into by such fund with the Life
Insurance Corporation of India.

e) Pension Scheme
The Group makes contributions to the Pension Scheme fund in respect of certain employees of
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Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.11 Leases- Group as a lessee
Leases are accounted for using the principles of recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosures as set out in Ind AS 116 Leases.
On inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract contains a
lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The right to use the asset and the obligation under the lease to make
payments are recognised in the Group’s financial statements as a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability.
Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates payments
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices
and applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use asset recognised at lease commencement includes the amount of lease liabilities
on initial measurement, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated to a
residual value over the rights-of-use assets’ estimated useful life or the lease term, whichever is
lower. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities and are
subject to impairment testing. Residual value is reassessed at each reporting date.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’
payments) and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives
receivable. ‘In-substance fixed’ payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but
that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Group is not reasonably
certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase
option if the Group is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest on lease liability and reduced for lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification e.g. a change in the lease term, a change
in the ‘in-substance fixed’ lease payments or as a result of a rent review or change in the relevant
index or rate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of
variable leases which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed
amount is considered to be an ‘in-substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial
calculation of the lease liability. Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed” are charged against the

lease liability. - ﬂv\ CN &LF
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CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
The Group has opted not to apply the lease accounting model to intangible assets, leases of low-
value assets or leases which have a term of less than 12 months. Costs associated with these leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease payments are presented as follows in the Group’s statement of cash flows:
(i) short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments
that are not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are presented within cash flows
from operating activities;
(ii) payments for the interest element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash
flows from financing activities; and
(iii) payments for the principal element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash
flows from financing activities.

2.12 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

2.13 Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a WhOIEJ( <\k a/kf
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CIN: L74899UR2001PL.C033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
Level 1 Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a
whole ) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

2.14 Employees Stock option plan
Some employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form
of share based payment, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settled transactions).
Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/ or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or
credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to
an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the
expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the

computation of diluted earnings per sharé:! L <\~ )
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.15 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

b)

)

d)

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Recognition of deferred taxes

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the
probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Impairment of Financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. the Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Recognition of revenue

The price charged from the customer is treated as stand alone selling price of the goods transferred
to the customer. At each balance sheet date, basis the past trends and management judgment, the
Group assesses the requirement of recognising provision against the sales returns for its products
and in case, such provision is considered necessary, the management make adjustment in the
revenue. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of non-Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Group's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair

value indicators. C\r A)vr
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Conselidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

e)

a)

b)

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and
there by assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as
significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the
termination of the lease etc. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Government grants

The Group assesses whether the government grant received is for purchase of capital assets or for
meeting expenses as per the conditions attached to the grant and recognises the same as either
deduction from cost of assets or income in statement of profit and loss.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded.
The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions
is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations
of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority

Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining
the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long term government
bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit
obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation
rates for the respective countries. Further details about the assumptions used, including a

sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 40 \/{’\_ (\h o@/‘f
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Material accounting policies and explanatory notes To Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

)

d)

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an
asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives
and residual values of the Group’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. For managements

estimates on useful life of assets refer note 2.03 and 2.04. &
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amoyunts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

4  Capital Work-in-progress Amount
As at April 01, 2023 138.01
Add: Additions 667.07
Less: Expense off during the year -
Less: Capitalized during the year 748.00
As at March 31, 2024 57.08
Add: Additions 420.70
Less: Expense off during the year -
Less: Capitalized during the year 445.77
As at March 31, 2025 32.01

4i) Capital Work-in-progress Amount of CWIP for a period of
As at March 31, 2025 <1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total
Projects in progress 32.01 - - - 32.01
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
4 (i) Capital Work-in-progress Amount of CWIP for a period of
As at March 31, 2024 <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total
Projects in progress 57.08 - - - 57.08
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
5 Right of Use
Vehicle Leasehold Leasehold Total
land Buildings
Gross Carrving Value
As at April 1, 2023 20.94 15.02 60.16 96.12
Add: Additions 6.43 - - 6.43
Less: Deductions 1.63 - 24.43 26.06
As at March 31, 2024 25.74 15.02 35.73 76.49
Add: Additions 7.34 164.63 33.55 205.52
Less: Deductions - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 33.08 179.65 69.28 282.01
Depreciation / Amortization
As at April 1, 2023 4.80 0.68 27.63 33.11
Add: Charge for the year 7.99 0.17 9.00 17.16
Less: Deductions 0.30 - 24.43 24.73
As at March 31, 2024 12.49 0.85 12.20 25.54
Add: Charge for the year 10.25 1.61 12.29 24.15
Less: Deductions - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 22.74 2.46 24.49 49.69
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2024 13.25 14.17 23.53 50.95
As at March 31, 2025 10.34 177.19 44.79 232.32
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

6 (a) Other Intangible asset

Product

Software Total
development
Gross Carrving Value
As at April 01, 2023 8.41 30.44 38.85
Add: Additions - 42.09 42.09
Less: Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 8.41 72.53 80.94
Add: Additions - 12.94 12.94
Less: Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2025 8.41 85.47 93.88
Amortization
As at April 01, 2023 8.41 25.39 33.80
Add: Charge for the year - 2.46 2.46
Less: Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2024 8.41 27.85 36.26
Add: Charge for the year - 11.01 11.01
Less: Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2025 8.41 38.86 47.27
Net Carrving Value
As at March 31, 2024 - 44.68 44.68
As at March 31, 2025 - 46.61 46.61
6 (b) Imtangible Assets Under Development Amount
As at April 1, 2023 9.79
Add: Additions 34.31
Less: Capitalized during the year 44.10
Less: Write off -
As at March 31, 2024 -
Add: Additions 21.18
Less: Capitalized during the year -
Less: Write off -
As at March 31, 2025 21.18

Intangible Assets Under Development
As at March 31, 2025

Amount of Intangible Assets Under Development for a period of

<1 year

1-2 years

2-3 vears

>3 years

Total

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

21.18

21.18

Intangible Assets Under Development
As at March 31, 2024

Amount of Intangible Assets Under Development for a period of

<1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

>3 years

Total

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended




Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Notes to C lidated Fi ial S for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Balance sheet

7 Deferred tax created on: For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 6.25 1.71
Employee benefits 22.82 15.88
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 0.12 0.12
Financial instruments measured at fair value through P&L (35.19) (23.49)
Right of use, net of lease liability (3.62) (3.96)
Others 12.45 15.46
2.83 5.72
Deferred tax comprise of:
Deferred tax asset 55.46 42.09
Deferred tax liability (52.63) (36.37)
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) 2.83 5.72
Statement of Profit & Loss
Movement of deferred tax For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property Plant and Equipment and I[ntangible Assets 4.54) 12.36
Employee benefits (5.11) (1.49)
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 0.00 0.24
Financial instruments measured at fair value through P&L 11.70 11.60
Right of use, net of lease liability (0.34) (0.44)
Others 3.01 (6.92)
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) charged in profit and loss 4.72 15.35
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) charged in other comprehensive income (1.83) (0.82)
2.89 14.53

Total Deferred tax expense/ (credit)

7 1Income Tax

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

The major components of income tax expense are:
Profit and loss -
Current income tax:
Current incomne tax charge 182.92 173.69
Deferred tax:
Related to origination and reversal of temporary differences 4,72 15.35
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 187.64 189.04
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit / (loss) before tax from continuing operations 797.58 770.91
Statutory income tax rate applicable 25.17% 25.17%
Tax at India's statutory income tax rate 200.73 194.02
Adjustment for less depreciation under income tax 10.64 (8.01)
Adjustment for gratuity, leave encashment and bonus allowed on actual paid basis 3.52 4.90
Income not taxable (38.11) (27.48)
Other expenses disallowed 4.60 10.56
Income chargeable at different tax rate 13.82 2,19
Others (12.28) (2.49)
Deferred tax expense/(credit) on items of OCI 4.72 15.35

187.64 189.04

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

8 Current Tax assets (net)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Total

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance tax (net of provision for taxation) 32.80 6.88
32.80 6.88

Le
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Notes to C ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

(ANl amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

lidated Financial S

26 Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue from contract with customers

Sale of Products 7,217.27 5,993.85
Export Sales 326.32 273.91
Sale of services 7.67 21.09
7,551.26 6,288.85
Other Operating Revenues:
Scrap Sales 142 2.03
Export Incentives 5.70 5.23
Other operating Income 40.40 13.45
47.52 20.71
Total 7,598.78 6,309.56
Timing of revenue recognition For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Goods transferred at a point in time 7,543.59 6,267.76
Services transferred over the time 7.67 21.09
Total revenue from contract with customers 7.551.26 6.288.85

Revenue by location of customers

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

India 7,224.94 6,014.94
Outside India 326.32 273.91
Total revenue from contract with customers 7.551.26 6.288.85
Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 7,551.26 6,288.85
Less: adjustment on account of price variation - -
Less: Turmover discount = =

7,551.26 6,288.85

Performance obligation

Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the goods is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. {refer accounting policy 2.09}.
Sales of services: The performance obligation in respect of Software development services and Engineering services is
recognised over time, since the customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company.{refer accounting policy 2.09}. There is no remaining performance obligation (unsatisfied performance
obligation) pertaining to sale of services as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

27 Other income For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest Income on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost 0.53 0.93
- others - 0.54
- fixed Deposit 14.92 18.22
Net Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 4.88 3.23
Gain on Investments measured at FVTPL* 150.79 108.21
Miscellaneous income 5.25 349
Provision/Miscellaneous Balance Written back 3.72 -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.09 0.06
Total 180.18 134.68

* Gain on investment at FVTPL includes actual gain on sale of investment of Rs. 15.00 millions and Rs. 8.72 millions

during the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 respectively,
4, o,
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to C lidated Fi

ial Sta for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

28 Cost of material consumed For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw material . Packing material and Consumables
Inventories at the beginning of the year 367.86 397.47
Add: Purchases 4.910.50 3,836.26
5,278.36 4,233.73
Less: Inventories at the end of year 344.58 367.86
Total 4,933.78 3.865.87
Opening Stock of Consumables 191 15.42
Add: Purchases of Consumables 180.89 204.81
Less: Closing Stock of Consumables 1.80 1.91
Total consumption of consumables 181.00 218.32
Material Consumed Comprises of:
Raw Material/Chemical and Packing Material 4,752.78 3,647.55
Consumables 181.00 218.32
Total 4.933.78 3,865.87
29 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progress For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 217.51 170.39
Work in Progress 36.52 179.52
Total (A) 254.03 349.91
Less: Inventories at the end of year
Finished Goods 451.66 217.51
Work in Progress 17.60 36.52
Total(B) 469.26 254.03
Total (A-B) (215.23) 95.88
30 Employee benefit expenses For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages 1,151.32 812.33
Gratuity expense (refer note 40) 11.13 7.41
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 40) 34.21 28.34
Staff welfare expenses 7.90 5.82
ESOP Expenses 24.60 20.67
Total 1,229.16 874.57
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Notes to C. lidated Fi ial Sta for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
31 Finance cost For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on
-term loans and vehicle loans 0.02 0.16
-working capital loans 38.82 6.61
-lease liability 4.83 397
-Other borrowing cost 0.15 0.31
Total 43.82 11.05
32 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 244.69 114.82
Depreciation on right-of-use asset (refer note 5) 24,15 17.16
Amortisation of intangible assets [refer note 6(a)] 11.01 246
Total 279.85 134.44
33 Other expenses For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Power & fuel 216.13 161.52
Repairs
-Buildings 397 10.89
-Machinery 15.88 22.00
-Others 9.46 9.52
Insurance 10.31 10.95
Rates and Taxes 9.51 5.19
Security expenses 20.91 15.03
Traveling Expenses 33.32 2433
Legal and Professional Fees 18.13 2321
Auditor Remuneration (refer Note 34) 3.38 3.19
Commission on sales 99.10 109.92
Freight and carriage 86.35 62.81
Advertisement and Publicity 27.87 48.32
Research & Development Expenses (refer note 35) 62.51 78.77
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 37) 11.13 9.93
Donations 0.15 0.23
Lab Testing Expenses 27.43 22.84
Printing and Stationery 12.60 11.29
Recruitment Expenses 2.05 0.96
Balance Written Off 1.17 -
Rent* 830 4.85
Provision for doubtful debts and other assets 1.00 27.49
Calibration Expenses 1.26 2.57
Miscellaneous Expenses 28.09 25.71
Total 710.00 691.52
* Rent expense related to short term leases. (Also refer note 42)

>
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‘Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to C

lidated Fi ial § for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

34 Auditor's Remuneration

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory Audit Fees 240 2.40
Limited Review Fees 0.75 0.75
Certification Fees 0.04 0.04
Reimbursement of expense 0.19 -
Total 3.38 3.19
35 Research and development expenses For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Revenue expenditure

Employee benefit expenses 4533 40.73

Raw & Packing Materials Consumed 17.18 38.04

Total 62.51 78.77
36 Earnings per share For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders (A) 609.94 581.87

Opening number of equity shares 20,798,575 20,926,628

Add: Number of fresh issue of Equity shares through ESOP 160.736 -

Less: Number of Buy-back of Shares (Buy back of 128,053 shares of face - 128,053

value of Rs. 5 each for the period ended 3 1st March 2024 )

Closing number of equity shares 20,959,311 20,798,575

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares post Buyback / issue of] 20,895,025 20,806,285

Equity shares used as denominator in calculating Basic Earnings Per Share

(B)*

Impact of Potential diluted Equity Shares** 232,266 66,460

‘Weighted Average number of Equity Shares post Buyback / issue of] 21,127,291 20,872,745

Equity shares used as denominator in calculating Diluted Earnings Per

Share (C)*

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) (A/B) 29.19 27.97

Diluted eamings per share (in Rs.) (A/C) 28.87 27.88

*The weighted average no. of ordinary equity shares used in computing basic & diluted EPS are after considering the
impact of buyback / issue of Equity shares in accordance with requirement of Ind AS 33 Eamnings Per Share
**There are 232,266 and 66,460 potential equity shares arising due to ESOP for the year ended 3 1st March 2025, 3 1st

March 2024 respectively and the impact of the same is considered in Diluted Earning per share.

37 Corporate social responsibility expenses For the year ended | For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 11.09 9.69
during the year
b) Gross amount provided for CSR activities 11.13 9.93
c) Shortfall at the end of year Nil Nil
d) Total of previous year shortfall Nil Nil
¢) Reason for Shortfall N.A. N.A.
f) Nature of CSR Activities (Other than on-going projects)
Promoting health care including preventinve health care 473 3.66
Promoting Education 393 4.72
Animal Welfare & Environmental Sustainability 247 1.55
Skill Development & Promoting Education - -
g) Details of Related party Transactions Nil Nil
Total amount spent during the period/ vear 11.13 9.93




Windlas Biotech Limited

CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

38

Segment Information

Segments are identified in line with Ind AS-108, "Operating Segment" [specified under the section 133 of]
the Companies Act 2013 (the Act)] read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act, taking into consideration the internal
organisation and management structure as well as differential risk and return of the segment. Based on
above, the Group has identified "Pharmaceutical" as the only primary reportable segment. The Group
does not have any geographical segment. Hence no separate disclosures are provided in these consolidated
financial statements. The company has a susbidiary incorporated outside India which is not material for
the group

39

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended/period is given below. This information has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 120.27 153.11
- Interest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section - -
16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Develapment
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the - =
end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even - -
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise

Development Act, 2006

/\




Windlas Biotech Limited

CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

40

Gratuity and other post employment benefits

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits"(notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act) are given below :

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes payment to statutory funds in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 which are defined
contribution plans. The Company's contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
service. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further
contractual nor any constructive obligation. The amount recognised in Statement of Profit and loss is Rs.
34.21 millions (March 31, 2024: Rs. 28.34 millions).

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

a. The principal actuarial assumptions used for determining liability for gratuity are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Economic assumptions:
Discount rate* 6.54% 7.19%
Expected rate of return on plan asset 7.19% 7.36%
Salary escalation rate** 6.00% 6.00%
Demographic assumptions:
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 100% of IALM
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate 12% 12%

*The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of 6 year government bond as at the balance
sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

**The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial variation take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

/»k/D
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

I Change in present value of defined benefit during the year
1 Present value of defined benefit at the beginning of the year 58.73 46.79
2 Service Cost 10.98 7.53
3 Interest Cost 4.22 3.44
4 Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic - -
assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in Financial 2.57 0.50
assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience 5.11 2.57
assumptions
5 Benefits Paid (2.63) (2.10)
6 Liability Transfer In/(Out) - -
7 Present Value of obligation as at year-end 78.98 58.73
II Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the year
1 Plan assets at the beginning of the year 56.67 48.35
2 Expected return on plan assets 4.08 3.56
3 Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan 0.41 (0.19)
4 Employer's contribution 11.90 7.05
5 Benefits paid (2.63) (2.10)
6 Plan assets at the end of the year 70.44 56.67
I Reconciliation of Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets
1 Present Value of obligation as at year-end 78.98 58.73
2 Fair value of plan assets at year -end 70.44 56.67
3 Funded status: Surplus/(Deficit) (8.54) (2.06)
4 Net Asset/(Liability) (8.54) (2.06)
IV Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
1 Current Service Cost 10.98 7.53
2 Net Interest Cost 0.15 0.12)
3 Total Expense 11.13 7.41
V Other Comprehensive Income
1 Actuarial gain(Loss) on Liabilities (7.67) (3.06)
2 Actuarial gain(Loss) on Assets 0.41 (0.19)
3 Closing Amount recognised in OCI outside PL. Account (7.26) (3.25)
VI Bifurcation of PBO at the end of the year / period
1 Current Liability 14.12 10.98
2 Non-Current Liability 64.86 47.76

N
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Windlas Biotech Limited

CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

VII Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit obligation, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant

of which are detailed below:

Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

Investment Risk - If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets
lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount Rate - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
Mortality & disability - Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the
valuation can impact the Habilities.

Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of]
withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

VIII Investment Details
The management of 100% of the gratuity funds is entrusted with the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

IX The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation based on changes in significant assumptions is
provided in following table:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A. Impact of change in discount rate-

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 78.98 58.73
Impact due to increase of 0.50% (1.99) (1.43)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 2.10 1.51

B. Impact of change in future salary-

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 78.98 58.73
Impact due to increase of 1.00% 4.06 2.95
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% (3.72) 2.71)

C. Impact of change in withdrawal rate-

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 78.98 58.73
Impact due to increase of 5.00% (0.46) 0.02
Impact due to decrease of 5.00% 0.10 (0.60)

X Expected benefit payments
Year | 14.48 11.29
Year 2 8.00 5.91
Year 3 8.57 6.85
Year 4 8.27 6.51
Year 5 8.17 5.99
After 5th vear 72.06 55.62
i A
N T ‘/Z—
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

41 Related party disclosures

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship :
a) Key managerial personnel:

S.No. |Relationship Name
() |Whole Time Director Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass
(ii) [Managing Director Mr. Hitesh Windlass
(iii) |Joint Managing Director Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass
(iv) |Executive Director Mr. Pawan Kumar Sharma
(v) |Non Executive Director Mrs. Prachi Jain Windlass
(vi) |Chief Executive Officer Mrs. Komal Gupta
& Chief Financial Officer
{vii) |Company Secretary Mr Ananta Narayan Panda
(viii) [Independent Director Mr. Gaurav Gulati
(ix) |Independent Director Mr. Vivek Dhariwal
(x) |Independent Director Mr. Srinivasan Venkataraman

b) Relative of Key Managerial Personnel with whom transaction have taken place:

AT Relationship Name
(i) |Wife of Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass Mrs. Vimla Windlass
(i) |Wife of Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass Mrs. Payal Windlass

c) Companies with Interest by Key Managerial Personnel:

S-No, Relationship Name
(i) |Interest by Key Managerial Personnel AKW WBL Family Private Trust

d) Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Key Relative of Key (I::tl:fezlt"tf; :?:;‘
S.No. Nature of transaction Year ended Managerial Managerial . Total
Managerial
Personnel Personael
Personnel

(i)  |Rent & Power Cost
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 1.95 - - 1.95
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 1.95 - - 1.95
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 1.95 - - 1.95
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 1.96 - - 1.96
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 1.96 - - 1.96
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 1.96 - - 1.96

(i)  |Salarv, allowances and bonus - -
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 15.60 - - 15.60
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 8,70 - - 8.70
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 8.70 - - 870
Mr. Pawan Kumar Sharma March 31, 2025 6.58 - - 6,58
Mrs: Komal Gupta March 31, 2025 2126 - - 2126
Mr. Ananta Narayan Panda March 31, 2025 3.01 - - 3.01
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 15.60 - - 15.60
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 8.70 - - 870
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 8.70 - - 8.70
Mr. Pawan Kumar Sharma March 31, 2024 461 - - 461
Mrs. Komal Gupta March 31, 2024 16.53 - - 16.53
Mr. Ananta Narayan Panda March 31, 2024 2.52 - - 2.52
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Windlas Biotech Limited

CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Companies with

Key Relative of Key Interest by Key
S.No. Nature of transaction Year ended | Managerial Managerial Managerial Total
Personnel Personael
Personnel

(iti) |Commission
Mr, Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 9.00 - - 9.00
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 9.00 - - 9.00
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 8.80 - - 8.80
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 8.80 - - 8.80

(iv) |Security Deposit refund.
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 1.77 - - 1.77
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 1.77 - - 1.77
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 1.77 - - 1.77
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 1.78 - - 1.78
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 1.78 - - 1.78
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 1.78 - - 1.78

(v) |Dividend Paid
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 24.20 - - 24.20
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 0.00 - - 0.00
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 0.00 - - 0.00
Mrs.Prachi Jain Windlass March 31, 2025 0.00 - - 0.00
Mrs. Payal Windlass March 31, 2025 - 0.00 - 0.00
Mrs. Vimla Windlass March 31, 2025 - 1.56 - 1.56
AKW WBL Family Private Trust | March 31, 2025 - - 46,10 | 46.10
Ms. Komal Gupta March 31, 2025 0.07 - - 0.07
Mr.Pawan Kumar Sharma March 31, 2025 0.06 - - 0.06
Mr. Ananta Narayan Panda March 31, 2025 0.00 - - 0.00
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 17.60 - - 17.60
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 0.00 - - 0.00
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 0.00 - - 0.00
Mrs.Prachi Jain Windlass March 31, 2024 0,00 - - 0.00
Mrs. Payal Windlass March 31, 2024 - 0.00 - 0.00
Mrs. Vimla Windlass March 31, 2024 = 1.14 - 1.14
AKW WBL Family Private Trust | March 31, 2024 = s 33,53 | 33.53

(Vi) |Director Sitting Fees
Mr. Gaurav Gulati March 31, 2025 0.55 - - 0.55
Mr.Vivek Dhariwal March 31, 2025 0.34 - - 0.34
Mr. Srinivasan Venkataraman March 31, 2025 041 - - 041
Mr. Gaurav Gulati March 31, 2024 0.54 - - 0.54
Mr.Vivek Dhariwal March 31, 2024 0.38 - - 0.38
Mr. Srinivasan Venkataraman March 31, 2024 0.45 - - 045

(vii) |ESOP Exercise amount received
Ms. Komal Gupta March 31, 2025 3.40 - - 3.40
Mr.Pawan Kumar Sharma March 31, 2025 3.84 - - 3.84
Mr. Ananta Narayan Panda March 31, 2025 0.22 - - 0.22

Ms. Komal Gupta
Mr.Pawan Kumar Sharma
Mr. Ananta Narayan Panda

March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to C

lidated Financial Stat

ts for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

¢) Balances outstanding are as follows:

Key Relative of Key f:tl:ti?t“;; x‘:;
S.No. Nature of transaction Year ended Managerial Managerial . Total
Managerial
Personnel Personael
Personnel
(i) Security deposit
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 0.18 - - 0.18
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 0.18 - - 0.18
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 0.18 - - 0.18
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 1.95 - - 195
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 1.95 - - 1.95
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 1.95 - - 1.95
(1)  |Salarv Pavable
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 1.30 - - 1.30
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 0.73 - - 0.73
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 0.73 - - 0.73
Mr. Pawan Kumar Sharma March 31, 2025 1.24 - - 124
Mrs. Komal Gupta March 31, 2025 5.44 - - 544
Mr. Ananta Narayan Panda March 31, 2025 0.48 - - 0.48
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 1.30 - - 1.30
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 0.73 - - 0.73
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 0.73 - - 0.73
Mr. Pawan Kumar Sharma March 31, 2024 0.42 - - 0.42
Mrs. Komal Gupta March 31, 2024 3.67 - - 3.67
Mr. Ananta Narayan Panda March 31, 2024 021 - - 0.21
(iii) |Rent Pavable
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 0.16 - - 0.16
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 0.16 - - 0.16
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 0.16 - - 0.16
Mr. Ashok Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 0.16 - - 0.16
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 0.16 - - 0.16
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 0.16 - - 0.16
(iv) |Commission Pavable
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2025 9.00 = - 9.00
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2025 9.00 - - 9.00
Mr. Hitesh Windlass March 31, 2024 8.80 - - 8.80
Mr. Manoj Kumar Windlass March 31, 2024 8.80 - - 8.80
Note:

(i) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the period end/ year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There
have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the
related party operates.

(ii) Remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave
encashment, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the company as a whole.

(iii)The Company has recognised an expenses of Rs. 16.76 millions (previous year Rs. 8.83 millions) towardsemployee
stock options granted to Key Managerial Personnel.
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Windlas Biotech Limited

CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

42 Short term leases
Short term leases are mainly in the nature of premises and godowns and are renewable / cancellable at the option

of either of the party. The aggregate amount of short term lease payment recognised in the statement of Profit and
Loss account is March 31, 2025: Rs. 8.30 millions, March 31, 2024: Rs. 4.85 millions.

(i) The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period/ vear:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
At the beginning of the year 3532 45.49
Addition during the year 164.93 6.43
Accretion of interest 483 3.97
Payments (150.28) (20.57)
At the end of the vear 54.80 35.32
(ii) The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 24.15 17.16
Interest expense on lease liabilities 483 3.97

(iii) The total amount of cash flows on account of lease liabilities for the year has been disclosed in consolidated

statement of cash flow.
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Notes to C lidated Fi ial S ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

45. Disclosure on Emplovees Stock Options Scheme

a) ESOP Policy
Equity share-based payments to employees and other providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based payments transactions are set out in notes to

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the company’s estimate of equity instrument that will eventually vest, with acorresponding increase in equity. At the end of
each reporting period, the company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustrment to the Share Option Outstanding Account

(b) ESOP Disclosure
Details of Scheme: Employee Stock Option Plan 2021
During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has instituted "Windlas Biotech Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2021" ('ESOP
Scheme 2021') pursuant to the approval of Board of Directors of the company as on April 16, 2021 and the Shareholders of the Company as
on April 17, 2021 The maximum number of shares that may be issued pursuant to the scheme shall not exceed 546,222 shares. Out of
546,222 shares, 419,439 shares were granted on June 03, 2021 (grant date) to the eligible employees

The Plan provides for grant of stock options, wherein one stock option would entitle the holder of the option a right to apply for one fully
paid equity share (Face value of Rs.5) of the company upon fulfilment of vesting conditions prescribed in the Plan The stock options granted
to each eligible employee shall vest not carlier than 1 (One) year and not later than

maximum Vesting Period of 5 (five) years from the date of Grant with ratio of 10:20:30:40 vesting. The eligible employees shall be entitled
to exercise the vested options within the exercise period The Exercise price of the stock options granted is INR 27535

Grant | Exercise | Options Options Options | Options | Options Options Estimated
Date Price | Granted veste.d & Unvested | Exercised | Cancelled | Outstanding | Fair value
Exercisable
03-May-21] 27535 | 41,154 41,154 - 28.674 10,849 1631 10591
03-May-21] 27535 | 8§2.649 82,649 - 52,311 21,815 8523 128.05
ESOP Scheme 2021 03-May-21| 27535 | 123.870 123,870 - 59,526 32,408 31,936 138.43
03-May-21] 27535 | 164,524 - 119,905 - 44,619 119.905 150.50
03-May-21] 27535 7.242 - 937 - 6,305 937 162.59
. R . Weighted Average We} g'h fed average
No of Options | Range of exercise price R . remaining contractual
exercise price . .
Life (Years)
Outstanding at the beginning of the ygar 308,650 275.35 27535 0.47
Granted during the yvear - 275.35 275.35 =
Cancelled during the year 5,207 275.33 27535 -
Exercised during the year 140,511 27535 275.35 -
Outstanding at the End of the year 162,932 275.35 275.35 0.07
Exercizable at the End of the year 42,090 275.35 275 35 -

Details of Scheme: Employee Stock Option Plan 2023

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has instituted “Windlas Biotech Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023" (ESOS
Scheme 2023') pursuant to the approval of Board of Directors of the company as on Aug 08, 2023 and the Shareholders of the Company as
on Sep 12, 2023. The maximurn number of shares that may be issued pursuant to the scheme shall not exceed 315,000 shares. Out of 315,000

The Plan provides for grant of stock options, wherein one stock option would entitle the holder of the option a right to apply for one fully
paid equity share (Face value of Rs.5) of the company upon fulfilment of vesting conditions prescribed in the Plan. The stock options granted
to each eligible employee shall vest over a period of 4 years with equal vesting from the grant date. The eligible employees shall be entitled to
exercise the vested options within the exercise period. The Exercise price of the stock options granted is INR 275 00

Grant | Exercise | Options Options Options | Options | Options Options Estimated
Date Price | Granted veste:d - Unvested | Exercised | Cancelled | Outstanding | Fair value
Exercisable
17-0¢t-23] 27500 | 76,937 55.837 - 20,225 875 55,837 149.71
R 17-0ct-23] 27500 | 76.938 - 76,938 - 1,250 75,688 164 31
= 17-0ct-23] 27500 | 76937 ~ [ 76037 : 1250 75.687 176,80
17-0¢t-23] 27500 | 76,938 - 76,938 - 1,250 73,688




Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PL.C033407
Naotes to C lidated Fi ial St ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

g 7 " Weighted Average We,' g_h ted average
No of Options | Range of exercise price R . remaining contractual
exercise price . ?
Life (Years)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 307.750 275.00 275.00 2.05
Granted during the year - 275.00 275.00 -
Cancelled during the year 4,625 275.00 275.00 -
Exercised during the year 20,225 275.00 275.00 -
Outstanding at the End of the year 282.900 275.00 27500 124
Exercisable at the End of the year 55.837 275.00 275.00 -

Method used for accounting of share based payment plan
The company has used the fair value method to account for the compensation cost of stock options to employees. The fair value of options

used are estimated on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes Models.

46. Buyback of Shares
The Board of Directors of the company in their meeting held on November 08, 2022, has decided for Buy-back of Equity shares of Face Valug|
Rs.3 each for an amount not exceeding Rs. 250 00 million at a price not exceeding Rs. 325/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Twenty Five Only) per|
¢quity share (“Maximum Buy-back Price™) payable in cash from the equity shareholders/ beneficial owners of the equity shares of the Company
other than the Promoters, members of Promoter Group and persons in control of the Company (“Buyback Offer”) from Open Market through
Stock Exchange Mechanism in terms of the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(“Buyback Regulations™)

The company had based on the above approval bought back 867,747 number of Equity share having face value of Rs. 5 each for an amount Rs.
217.966 million at the average price of Rs 251 .19 from the open market till March 31, 2023

The Company, completed the Buyback on May 03, 2023 by purchase of 995,800 equity shares aggregating to Rs. 250.039 million (excluding
Transaction Costs) from the equity shareholders of the Company (other than the promoters, promoter group and persons in control of the
Company) via the open market route, The amount utilised towards the Buyback exceeded by Rs. 0.039 million due to reasons beyond control,
which is 0.0159% of the amount earmarked for the Buyback The board has approved the total amount of buyback of Rs. 250.039 million

g
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Windlas Biotech Limited
CIN: L74899UR2001PLC033407
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

48 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
i.  Contingent Liabilities
There is no contingent liabilities.
ii. Capital Commitments

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for 20.84 152.87

49 Other Statutory information

i.  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding
any Benami property.

ii. The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iii. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

iv. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

v. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
a.  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b.  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

vi. The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).

vii. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

viii. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
current or previous year.

ix. The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand.

50 Significant Events after the Reporting date
There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting date.

As per our report of even date
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of Windlas Biotech Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 000756N/N500441
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Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A"”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl. No. Particulars

Details

1. | Name of the subsidiary

Windlas Inc.

2. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting
period

March 31, 2025

3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last UsD

date of the relevant financial year in the case of

foreign subsidiaries
4 Share capital 0.34
5. | Reserves & surplus (0.50)
6. | Total assets 0.03
7 Total Liabilities 0.03
8 Investments 0.00
9. | Turnover 0.00
10. | Profit before taxation 3.24
11. | Provision for taxation 0.19
12. | Profit after taxation 3.05
13. | Proposed Dividend Nil
14. | % of shareholding 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- N.A
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.- N.A

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

P —

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Not Applicable
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Not Applicable
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end
No. Nil
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture Nil

Extend of Holding%

A

e%\ Nil

3\

-,‘ k\F\N oE 4]

/S /f-?r\ escrlptlon of how there is significant influence ku(y z

\I\_ 4. Rgason why the associate/joint venture is not

\““—"/CQHSOhd ated

7

——

A

/

A B



5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest -
audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year
i Considered in Consolidation -
| Not Considered in Consolidation -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. NA

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year:
During the year ended March 31, 2025, Windlas Inc. ( a Wholly Owned Subsidiary) has
assigned its 50% share in its Joint Venture namely, USpharma Windlas LLC to US Pharma Ltd.
via agreement dated July 12, 2024. Therefore, USpharma Windlas LLC has ceased to be a joint

Venture of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Windlas Biotech Limited
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